ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 2, 2007
3:12 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representati ve Mark Neuman, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux
Representati ve Jay Ranras
Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch
Representative Berta Gardner

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 146
"An Act requiring certain businesses to recognize postmark dates
as the date of paynent.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 211

“"An Act inposing a fee on homeowner's insurance policies issued
or renewed in the state; requiring an insurer issuing or
renewi ng a honeowner's insurance policy to collect the fee; and
creating a special account in the general fund, allow ng noney
in the fund to be appropriated to the Departnent of Public
Safety for the Alaska Fire Standards Council, and repealing the
Al aska fire services personnel fund."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 146

SHORT TI TLE: PAYMENT DATE FOR BILLS FOR SERVI CES
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) COGHI LL

02/ 21/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 21/ 07 (H L&C, JUD
04/ 02/ 07 (H) L&C AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- April 2, 2007



BILL: HB 211
SHORT TITLE. HOVEOANERS | NSUR. FEE/ FI RE STDS. COUNCI L
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) RAMRAS

03/ 21/ 07 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 21/ 07 (H) L&C, STA, FIN
04/ 02/ 07 (H L&C AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE JOHN COGHI LL

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 146.

BARBARA COTTI NG St af f

to Representative Jay Ranras

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 211 on behal f
Representati ve Ranras, sponsor.

JACK SM TH, Director/Fire Chief

North Sl ope Borough Fire Departnent

Barrow, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 211.

JEFF TUCKER, Fire Chief

North Star Vol unteer Fire Departnent;

2" Vice President

Al aska Fire Chiefs Association (AFCA

North Pol e, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 211.

M TCH FLYNN, Fire Chi ef

St eese Area Vol unteer Fire Departnent

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 211.

CAROL R REED, President

Al aska State Firefighters Association (ASFA)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 211.

KENTON BRI NE
Property Casualty Insurers Association of America (PCl)

of

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- April 2, 2007



A ynpi a, Washi ngt on
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 211.

DOUG SCHRAGE, 1°' Vice President

Al aska Fire Chiefs Association (AFCA);

Deputy Chi ef

Anchor age Fire Departnent

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 211.

KATHY WASSERVAN

Al aska Muni ci pal League (AM.)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 211.

JEFFREY TROUTT, Deputy Director

Di vision of |nsurance

Department of Commerce, Community, & Economic Devel opnent
( DCCED)

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: O fered coments and answered questions
during hearing on HB 211.

ERI C MOHRVANN, Fire Chief

Capital Gty Firel/ Rescue (CCFR)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 211.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:12:49 PM Representatives Buch,
Neurman, Gatto, Gardner, LeDoux, Ranras, and O son were present
at the call to order.

HB 146- PAYMENT DATE FOR BI LLS FOR SERVI CES

CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 146, "An Act requiring certain businesses to
recogni ze postmark dates as the date of paynent."

3:13:25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHN COGHI LL, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor,
began by sharing his personal experience with mailing paynents
for wvarious services. He explained the process that nmjor
credit card conpanies use for sending statenments in the mail,
whi ch can | eave consuners with a five-day w ndow before paynent

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- April 2, 2007



is due. He said that this leaves “no confort that if | put a
first class letter in the mail that day, they would be able to

get it in the tinme that has been allotted.” He said that
i ncluding services such as electric and telephone in the bil

has “created no small stir.” He stated that he resides in North
Pole, which is a “fairly decent” mil carrier system and

pointed out that for those who live in nore rural areas of the
state, it can take up to three or four days longer to receive
mai | . He shared his hope that conpanies that deliver services
on a nonthly basis, such as insurance carriers, would becone
nore sensitive to this concern, adding that his primary concern
is major credit card conpani es. He explained that credit card
conpani es process paynents through a national clearinghouse, and
noted that while a consuner may nmake an el ectronic paynent by
the due date, the conpany nmay take longer to process the
paynment . This can result in late fees and higher interest
rates, even though the funds were taken from the bank account by
the due date. He said:

Maybe the best thing to do, is to have a definitive
that when | mil the check to them that is a
legitimate paynent date. Because | can’t prove when
they get it. That is the problem They could hold
onto it for [three or four days]. ... The nmail could
take ten days. The fact is, if you're going to do the
paynent by mail, you're going to have to figure you're
going to pay a penalty.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL t hen suggested that those who are able to

switch to electronic paynents do so. However, this can stil

result in a late paynent. He opined that while there may be a
Federal Conmuni cations Conm ssion (FCC) question, the bill
should be passed as a “matter of interest,” adding that a
statutory provision would result in nore notice than a

resolution. He said “I'"'mwlling to send it up as a challenge.”
He suggested anending Section 1(b)(2) by replacing “includes”

with “excludes”.
3:19:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS nade a notion to adopt Anendnent 1
| abel ed 25-LS0515\ A. 1, Bannister, 3/20/07, which read:

Page 1, line 12:

Del ete "i ncl udi ng"
| nsert "excl udi ng”

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- April 2, 2007



Page 2, line 1:
Del ete "incl udes"
| nsert "does not include"

CHAI R OLSON obj ected for discussion purposes.

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL reiterated that this would renpve
electric and tel ephone services fromthe bill. He acknow edged
that he has caused consternation with these services, however,
it is wrthy to note that this is a consuner problem

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS noted that he shares the sponsor’s

frustration, and is a cosponsor of this bill. In regard to
Amendnent 1, he inquired as to whether this includes a broad
enough group of wutilities. He has spoken with representatives

from utilities in rural areas, which would have to retain all
envel opes with postmarks in order to satisfy the requirenents of
this |egislation. He would like to ensure that this brings
enough relief to the various utilities and does not create a
problemfor certain utilities.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL replied that he wuld look up the
statutory definition of “public wutility,” to ensure that it
includes all the utilities in question.

CHAIR OLSON stated that he is curious to know whether this
i ncl udes el ectrical cooperatives.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noted that it is not his intention to
cause undue harm This is a legitimte question of consuner
protection. He said that if he feels the issue, as it relates
to public utilities, can be worked on, he nmay cone back and
request this. However, the larger concern is with the credit
card conpani es.

3:23: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL referenced the definition of “public
utility” in AS 42.05.990:

(4) "public utility" or "utility" includes every
corporation whether public, cooperative, or otherw se,
conpany, individual, or association of individuals,
their |essees, trustees, or receivers appointed by a
court, that owns, operates, nanages, or controls any
pl ant, pipeline, or systemfor

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- April 2, 2007



(A) furnishing, by generation, transmssion, or
distribution, electrical service to the public for
conpensati on;

(B) furnishing tel ecommunications service to the
public for conmpensati on;

(© furnishing water, steam or sewer service to
the public for conpensation;

(D) furnishing by transm ssion or distribution of
nat ur al or manufactured gas to the public for
conpensati on;

(E) furni shi ng for di stribution or by
distribution petroleum or petroleum products to the
public for conpensation when the consunmer has no
alternative in the choice of supplier of a conparable
product and service at an equal or |esser price;

(F) furnishing collection and di sposal service of
garbage, refuse, trash, or other waste material to the
public for conpensati on;

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN commented that this is a very broad
definition, and requested that a list of the utilities that are
included in this definition be submtted to the commttee.

3:24:50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX agreed that the definition of “public
utility” is broad. She questioned whether the foregoing
definition includes private utilities.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL pointed out that the definition includes
“individual, or association of individuals”, in addition to “or
ot herw se”, whi ch, i f conbi ned, woul d appl y to t he
af orenentioned private utilities.

3:25:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER shared her understanding that Anendnent 1
excludes utilities because the changes proposed by the bill are
expensive and inconvenient; however, other businesses are not
excl uded.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL replied that this has very little to do
with the inconvenience, and nore to do wth the conpany’s
ability to conply, which can be an issue with snmaller conpanies.
There is an inconvenience in the state, which he is less-than
synpat hetic to. The real question, he said, is that Al aska
residents get “hamrered” with credit cards nmuch nore than with

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- April 2, 2007



regular nonthly billings, which is why he chose to address a
| arger realm He stated that this can be very difficult and
costly to inpose on regulated utilities.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVMAN inquired as to whether it would be easier
to specify credit card conpani es.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL replied that many conpanies deal with the
state from a national per specti ve, i ncl udi ng I nsur ance
conpanies. He is less synpathetic to these conpani es.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN opined that insurance conpanies are nore
time sensitive than other types of conpanies. He stated that
there is “a lot of confusion” in the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL replied that he erred on the side of
consuner protection, and shared a story involving an insurance
conpany that automatically canceled his policy when it did not
receive paynent 30 days in advance of the policy s expiration.
He said that he found this objectionable.

3:30: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN reiterated that Amendnent 1 is very broad.
He said that while he thinks he is in support, there has not
been adequate clarification. He reiterated that he would I|ike
to see a list of conpanies that are included, along wth
conpani es that are not included.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL stated that he is wlling to hold the
bill over, if that is the wwsh of the conmmttee. He stated that
the bill is meant to bring policy discussion to the table, and
reiterated that this is an inportant consuner protection issue.
He said that local, in-state utilities are usually diligent with
billing, adding that those outside of Al aska create a problem

CHAIR OLSON, in regard to the |anguage of Anmendnent 1, stated
that it may be nore appropriate to “flesh it out,” and specify
whi ch conpani es are incl uded.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said that he would cone back before the
commttee with an outline of what conpanies are effected by
Amendrent 1.

CHAI R OLSON i ndicated that HB 146 would be held in conmtt ee.

3:33:44 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- April 2, 2007



HB 211- HOVEOMNERS | NSUR. FEE/ FI RE STDS. COUNCI L

CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 211, "An Act inposing a fee on honeowner's
i nsurance policies issued or renewed in the state; requiring an
insurer issuing or renewing a honeowner's insurance policy to
collect the fee; and creating a special account in the general
fund, allowing noney in the fund to be appropriated to the
Departnment of Public Safety for the Al aska Fire Standards
Council, and repealing the Alaska fire services personnel fund."

3:33: 56 PM

BARBARA COTTING Staff to Representative Jay Ranras, Al aska
State Legislature, sponsor, explained that according to the
Alaska Fire Chiefs Association (AFCA), fire departnments in
Al aska are not financially able to achieve the current nationa
fire protection standards. This places residents and their
property in nore jeopardy than is needed. She pointed out that
the AFCA has been trying for many years to find funding sources
in order to fund the Alaska Fire Standards Council (AFSC), and
have the nmeans to inplenent the training standards. She stated
that in 1998, the legislature established the AFSC, which was
intended to develop and regulate training for Alaska s fire
depart nments. However, the legislature did not fund the AFSC
The sponsor’s office has worked with the AFCA to find a way to
fund the council. She stated that thus far, HB 211 is the best
fundi ng source. The Division of Insurance (“the Division”) has
advised the sponsor that this fee should only apply to
homeowners insurance, adding that honmeowners benefit the nost.
A $3 fee would be added to each homeowner’s policy issued or
sold in Al aska. This fee would be collected by the insurance
conpany, and paid to the Division. Additionally, HB 211 creates
an account in the general fund (GF) called the Alaska Fire
Standards Council Fund, into which the $3 fee wuld be
deposi t ed. She said that HB 211 repeals the Alaska Fire
Servi ces Personnel Fund, which was established in 1988 to mrror
a simlar fund created for the Alaska Police Standards Council

but has never been used. Wth the establishnent of the Al aska
Fire Standards Council Fund, the personnel fund is no |onger
needed.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS added that this will not | ower honmeowner’s

I nsurance prem uns. He pointed out that when police officer’s
wite a citation, a fraction of the citation goes to the Police
Safety Standards Council . Firefighters do not have the ability

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- April 2, 2007



to raise noney in that capacity. He said “We are not crazy

about this funding source. But it’s quite clear, from the
history of the Fire Safety Standards Council, that no other
funding source has ever energed.” He stated that he recently

met with firefighters who explained that adequate training is
not received, however, when there 1is an energency, the
firefighters nmust be able to performa variety of functions. He
explained that there is a “quilt” of volunteer fire departnents
working with paid fire departnments across the state. However,
the notion that volunteer firemen and paid firemen are not able
to integrate their skills because they have not been able to
integrate their training puts individuals at risk.

3:39: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS noted that he previously voted against
having a fishing license fee that taxed recreation, and
introduced this bill wth trepidation. The director of the
Division is not crazy about the bill, but acknow edged that the
application 1is possible. He said “Wre not crazy about
i nposing a tax on honmeowners, either. But the fact is that we
need paid firemen to be able to integrate with the volunteer
firemen.” He then gave exanpl es of other groups that are unable
to get funding through the state, such as the Comunity Service
Patrol. VWhile the state has made it clear that it does not want
to use state dollars for comunity funding efforts, the Fire
Safety Standards Council is statewde, and this concern was
expressed by all the fire chiefs that visited the Capitol
Bui | di ng. He said that he finds this “quite appropriate,”
al though an additional tax is unwelcone. He noted that the
director of the Division previously stated that insurance
prem uns and taxes on these premuns represent the nunber two
revenue streamto the state. He reiterated that the legislature
must find a way to fund the Fire Safety Standards Council,

because it will ultimately lead to the integration of volunteer
and paid services. He pointed out the difference between
integrating volunteer firenmen with paid firenen, and vol unteer
policemen and paid |aw enforcenent individuals. Vol unt eer

firefighters are just as valuable as professional firefighters.
He said “So, it was with great frustration, and sone angst over
t he funding mechanism that we drafted this bill. But, we don't
know of a better way.”

3:43:42 PM
REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked if the $3 fee is annual or per
policy.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- April 2, 2007



M5. COTTING replied that the fee is annual, per policy.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN noted that the AFCA supported a $5 fee,
whi ch has been reduced to $3.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS, in response to a question regarding the
budget, stated that there is a cost to the Division to collect
t he funds. The AFCA indicated that there is a nyriad of grant
noney that can be applied for, which can be put towards the
prime m ssion. He said that $3 was not found to be “heinous,”
with respect to insurance premuns and what is expected when

energency services are needed. He shared a recent experience
t hat i nvol ved t he i ntegration of pai d and vol unt eer
firefighters, and said that he is interested 1in these

firefighters continuing to work together. He said:

It’s inpractical in sone ways, it creates a slippery
slope, it’s dangerous in the precedent that it could

be setting. It’s difficult to collect, it’'s
cunbersone, there’'s a thousand things wong with it -
except for the fact that when 1 dial 911, | want

conpetent, trained, integrated people to show up and
hel p nme out, and ny nei ghbors as well.

3:47:38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER, in regard to the resolution from the
AFCA, pointed out that the AFCA suggested that the fee apply to
all fire insurance policies, while the bill applies only to
homeowner s. She questioned the reasoning for this. She then
comented that a honeowner with a $200 thousand home would be
paying the sanme as a honmeowner with a $1.5 mllion hone, and
expressed concern with this. Finally, she asked whether the
budget estimate provided by the AFCA is currently happening, or
is a “best case scenario.”

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS replied that it is sinpler to collect the
$3 fee from honeowners than businesses with nultiple policies
It is not regressive relative to the value of hones, as this is
also sinpler. He reiterated that the Division does not |ike the
bill, but feels this is sinpler and |ess cunbersone. He stated
that he does not have the answer to the question regarding the
AFCA budget esti mate.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- April 2, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER conmented that honeowners would then be
subsi di zing businesses and other policy holders that are not
required to participate.

REPRESENTATI VE RAVRAS opi ned that nost business owners own hones
in Al aska. He stated that the intent was not to single out
homeowners versus comrercial policies, and reiterated that the
Division does not |ike the nature of the collection mechanism
and has indicated that it would be nuch nore cunbersone to
i nvol ve commercial policies. He said that he has worked wth
the Division to satisfy as many objections as possible, in order
to concentrate on the greater good that conmes with establishing
t he AFSC. He explained that the original intent was to include
resi dence and business policies. He said “W're trying to take
something that [the D vision does not] like very much, and nmake
it as |likeable as possible.”

3:51: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if the D vision would be avail abl e
for testinony.

CHAI R OLSON replied yes.
The comm ttee took an at-ease from3:51 PMto 4: 02 PM
4:02: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if property that is not within the
fire service area would be charged the $3 fee.

M5. COTTING shared her wunderstanding that the fee would be
charged. The intent is to keep the bill as sinple as possible,
and would not discrimnate about the anount of the policy, or
where the property is | ocated.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO conmented that honmeowners nmay be able to
chal I enge this.

M5. COTTING pointed out a discrepancy in the fiscal note from
Department of Commerce, Community, & Economic Devel opnent
(DCCED), which estimates that there are 160 thousand honmeowner

policies in the state. The Division estinmated that there are
178,500 policies in the state. She surm sed that the nunber may
be “sonewhere in-between.” In response to a question from Chair

A son, she stated that this fee would apply to any person who
pur chases honmeowner insurance.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- April 2, 2007



CHAI R OLSON asked if this would include tenants that do not own
the property but have insurance.

M5. COITING replied that she is not sure.

CHAIR OLSON stated that he recently resigned from the Centra
Enmergency Service Area Board, of which he was a nenber for nine
years, adding that the last five years he chaired the board.
The organization is 40 percent volunteer and 60 percent paid
staff. He said “W handled our training with our mll-rate,”
and explained that training was both volunteer and paid staff.
He questioned how the fire service area in Fairbanks is handl ed.

M5. COTTING replied that there are firefighters online who m ght
better answer this question.

4:05:35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked Chair O son whether he feels this
woul d result in a savings.

CHAIR OLSON said that he 1is not able to answer this

specifically. He stated that his greatest problem is the
funding source, and shared his belief that this is a “slippery
slope.” He said that he has a problem with taxes, adding that

while he feels that funding the programis a good idea, it is
t he wong revenue source.

4:07:25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN commented that a tax on energency nunbers
passed the previous year, which applies to all phone lines, and
pointed out that many areas in the state do not have | ocal
emer gency nunbers set up.

CHAIR OLSON clarified that this was a result of a federal
mandate. He offered his understanding that this began at $5 per
phone |ine, regardless of whether it is a cell phone, land-Iline,
or fax. The legislature started at a fee of “up to $2,” wth
nost cities starting at $1.50. He explained that this was to
generate enhanced 911 service, to determne the location of the
cal l er.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER inquired as to how urban fire departnents
are currently funded for training.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- April 2, 2007



M5. COTTING replied that the AFSC handles the funding, and the
council is funded by the AFCA and the Alaska State Firefighters
Associ ati on (ASFA).

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER shared her understanding that the AFSC is
interested in training firefighters across the state, and urban
areas currently have paid training available. She inquired as
to the funding for firefighters in urban areas.

M5. COITING replied that she does not have the answer to this
guesti on.

CHAIR OLSON stated that on the Kenai Peninsula, the funding is
nmostly mll-rate.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER surm sed, then, that Anchorage uses the
sane funding source. She shared her wunderstanding that AFSC
woul d provide training to areas that are not currently served.

CHAI R OLSON shared his understanding that the AFSC provi des nore
than training to the state

REPRESENTATI VE = RAMRAS, in response to a question from
Representative Neunan, stated that to say that this would save
noney i s an over-statenent. He reiterated that this is not the
pref erabl e funding source. However, this programis needed, and
will not be funded through the House Finance Committee or the
Senate Finance Commttee. A uniform AFSC is needed, which the
mll-rates in the various communities do not provide. He

reiterated that fire departments do not have an inner nmechani sm
to fund the AFSC. He encouraged nenbers to hear testinony from
the firefighters in order to better understand what the funds
will be used for. He said:

If we can go to the finance conmttee, and try and

find a source, and they say “yeah, we’ll do it,” than
ri ght on. But if they say no, and they say it wth
some conviction, then I'd like to have the bill cone

back before this conmttee, and really take a | ook at
this undesirable funding source, for sonething that |
think | eads to safer communities across the state.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX comrented that firefighters can not wite
citations that can then be used as a funding source, and said
t hat perhaps this should be considered.

4:13: 20 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- April 2, 2007



JACK SMTH, Director/Fire Chief, North Slope Borough Fire
Departnment, stated that he is in support of HB 211. He said
that Alaska's fire services have nade significant strides to
obtain recognition by organizations such as the International
Fire Service Accreditation Congress (IFSAC), for training

provi ded. Unfortunately, attenpts to expand the training and
educati on have been hanpered due to the lack of a functioning
fire standards council with needed adm nistrative support. He

poi nted out that industry standard recognition is comon to all
professional fields, and has proven to be an incentive for
career personnel and volunteers that respond to energency calls

around the state. These individuals nmust conplete witten and
practical testing that determnes his or her ability to perform
skills conparable to other firefighters in the country. Thi s

certification is known and recogni zed, and thus allows Al askans
to conpete for jobs in-state and around the country. He pointed
out that while npbst advisory councils and boards receive sone
type of financial assistance to performtheir basic mssion, the
AFSC has not. Progress to formalize and develop Alaska s fire
training progr anms has been limted wi t hout adequat e
adm ni strative support, which increases the risk to both
firefighters and the public. He stated that npst states devel op
training and certification prograns, and work w th departnents
to admnister these progranms, thus ensuring consistency and
quality. He shared a story of a local firefighter that recently
obtained a job at Capital Cty Fire/Rescue (CCFR), and said
“Many woul d have never believed training could have been offered
in a rural hub of Alaska, to prepare an individual for a job in
the big city. Wile we were sad to see him | eave, other young
adults recognized the value of education and training, as well
as its ability to open doors for a career.” He stated that
providing financial support to the AFSC will enable it to becone
nore effective in developing and coordinating fire service
trai ning and education in Al aska.

4:17:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO shared his understanding that nobst of the
training that occurs is a result of the mll-rate for the fire
service area, and asked if this is correct.

MR SMTH replied that the North Slope Borough Fire Departnent
is funded by the North Sl ope Borough. The fire departnment is
accredited by the state to provide Firefighter level 1 and
Firefighter | evel 2 training, which is funded by the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- April 2, 2007



muni ci pality. The concern, he said, is devel oping new training
progr ans.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked whether adding a $3 fee to each
honmeowner insurance policy would change the anobunt of training
t hat occurs.

MR SM TH shared his understanding that funding the AFSC is
intended to provide the state with the guidance that is needed.
He said that preparing individuals to provide training at the
certification level is where the state provides the guidance and
testing.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO shared his understanding that the AFSC w ||

have noney for travel and contracts. He stated that he is
expecting the AFSC to be an organization that, when requested,
can send a representative to the fire house for training. He

inquired as to whether this is correct.

MR. SM TH shared his understanding that there is noney to bring
the nmenbers of the council together, in order to review the
progranms and procedures. He stated that the AFSC may take on
the role of the accrediting departnent, and explained the
process that the North Slope Borough Fire Departnent went
t hrough to becone accredited.

4:21:10 PM

JEFF TUCKER, Fire Chief, North Star Volunteer Fire Departnent;
2" Vice President, Alaska Fire Chiefs Association (AFCA),
explained that the AFSC is intended to be the standard naking
body that the fire departnents in the state can utilize to train

per sonnel . The council would put forth the mninum standards
for firefighters, conpany officers, engineers, fire prevention
prograns, and arson investigation prograns. The council would
not necessarily be the trainers. There are several prograns

that are accredited, and there is a need for additional
accredited prograns. He said that sone of the funding would go
toward testing admnistration, which is currently not funded.
He explained that if the departnent does firefighter testing, a
certified officer would be sent from the state to validate and
grade the test. This is mnmore of a standard setting
organi zation, and is not there to train.

4:23:52 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -15- April 2, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN questi oned whether the additional training
woul d have an effect on insurance rating.

MR. TUCKER replied that this would not directly effect the
i nsurance rating, although it mght inprove a fire departnment’s
rating. He stated that this is not the direct inpact, nor the
pur pose of the council.

4:25:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO shared his understanding that the intent is
to “make people safer.” He pointed out that insurance conpanies
are a direct beneficiary, as this will result in less clains and
energency nedical care. He questioned whether this should be
funded by the insurance conpani es.

MR. TUCKER replied that in sonme states the insurance conpanies
fund this type of organization; however, have not seen fit to do
so in Al aska. He stated that the fire departnents directly
af fect honmeowners, and adding the fee to insurance policies
seened the nost effective.

CHAI R OLSON asked how many service areas are in the Fairbanks
North Star Borough.

MR. TUCKER replied that the Gty of Fairbanks Fire Departnent
and the City of North Pole Fire Departnent are wthin the
bor ough. Qutside of the borough there are five fire service
ar eas.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO conmented that two thirds of the popul ation
of Alaska is |ocated between Honmer and Fairbanks. He shared his
under standing that Anchorage has a paid fire departnent that has
daily training, and that Fairbanks and the Matanuska-Susitna

Vall ey have simlar fire departnents. He questioned whether or
not passing the bill would change the training that is currently
happeni ng.

MR. TUCKER replied that it would. He explained that the
af orenenti oned departnments are directly affected by the AFSC
Wthout funding the council, the current prograns wll not be

mai nt ai ned, and the fire departnents could potentially |ose any
accreditation. This would directly affect the fire departnent’s
ability to recruit and train firefighters. He stated that al
fire departnments, whether rural or urban, are directly affected
by the AFSC.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- April 2, 2007



4:29:35 PM

M TCH FLYNN, Fire Chief, Steese Area Volunteer Fire Departnent,
stated that he strongly supports this legislation. He explained
that 80-85 percent of the residents within the Fairbanks North
Star Borough are protected by either the fire service areas or
the two city fire departnents. He is in support for holding
paid and volunteer firefighters to the sane standards. A
functioning AFSC is needed in order to provide the direction and
| eadership that is necessary for firefighters to perform their
jobs effectively.

4:31:01 PM

CAROL REED, President, Alaska State Firefighters Association
(ASFA), said that she responds with the Central WMtanuska-
Susitna Fire Departnent, and holds a seat on the AFSC She
stated that having standards for training firefighters would
create a safer firefighter, and a nore efficient firefighting
effort. She said that in the past, the Training and Education
Bur eau has absor bed t he costs for accreditation and
certification, and is no longer able to do so. The ASFA and the

AFCA is not able to cover these costs. She said that this has
an inpact on firefighters that nmay be trained, yet are unable to
becone certified. In regard to the $3 fee, she stated that if

this is not the appropriate funding source, than state needs to
create a funding source in order to maintain the AFSC

4:33:53 PM

KENTON BRINE, Northwest Regional Ofice, Property Casualty
| nsurers Association of Anerica (PCl), stated that PClI opposes

the bill as it is currently witten, although it does appreciate
the intended goal and the thoughtful ness of the sponsor and the
comittee. He said that while PCl is concerned with the

inequity of only applying the $3 fee to honeowners, it is also
concerned that this singles out a “responsible” segment of the
popul ati on. He stated that this is troubling for insurers,
because it is applied to the policies that are sold. He is not
aware of any requirenent that this be separately listed on a
policy, and as a result, this appears to be an increase in the

i nsurance bill. He comented that sone individuals may choose
not to pay the fee, and the insurance conpany would be
responsi ble for paynent. He suggested that this my have an

inpact on in-state insurers, which my be worth |ooking into
He explained that each state has an insurance retaliatory pact,
which is intended to pronote fair conpetition anong insurers

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- April 2, 2007



| ocated in various states around the country. An insurance
conpany based in a state, but doing business in another state

pays the rate for either the hone state, or the state in which
the business is being witten, whichever is higher. Ther ef or e,
if an insurer is based in Alaska and witing insurance in other
states, it may see an increase for in-state as well as out-of-
state busi ness. This puts in-state conpanies at a conpetitive
di sadvantage to conpanies |ocated el sewhere. He stated that
this is a potential problem and nmay becone an inpedi nent for
conpani es considering a nove to Alaska. He pointed out that the
insurance market in Alaska is a challenging market, and the
Division and the legislature have done a lot of work in recent
years to inprove the marketplace. He opined that this
| egislation goes in a different direction, and therefore PCl is
opposed to the legislation as it is witten.

4:38: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS reiterated that finding the funding source
is difficult. He said that one funding source that was
considered involved a fee for when 911 is dialed. However, the
fire officials do not want individuals to hesitate before
calling for energency services. He agreed that this is not the
i deal funding source; however, the other choices “seem to be
worse.” He inquired as to what funding source M. Brine would
suggest .

MR. BRINE replied that he is synpathetic to this point, however
he pointed out that this legislation is intended to protect all
Al askans. He stated that from PCl's perspective, it doesn't
make sense to approve legislation to protect all Al askans, yet
only place the fee on those who purchase homeowners insurance.
He acknowl edged that this is not tax on insurers, although there
is potential for the insurers to pay the cost if the policy
hol ders revolt agai nst paying the $3 fee.

4:41: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS commented that this is the broadest way to
cover the nost people, in order to offer safety enhancenent.
This was the “easiest possible way, wth a great deal of
undesi rabl e choi ces.”

DOUG SCHRAGE, 1°' Vice President, Alaska Fire Chiefs Association
(AFCA); Deputy Chief, Anchorage Fire Departnent, expressed
support for HB 211, and said that funding is needed. He
clarified that fire departnments, regardless of funding, provide

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- April 2, 2007



as much training as possible. Wen the fire departnents are not
able to provide training, the state Training and Education
Bureau offers assistance. He then explained the training
process, and the difference between training and certification.

4:46: 10 PM
MR. SCHRAGE, in regard to the funding source, said that

presently, the state is able to directly inpact fire safety in
commercial occupancies through the plan review and permtting

process. This is not applicable to residences. Wt hout the
AFSC, the state has no way to inpact the fire safety in hones,
ot her than through voluntary educational prograns. He stated

that funding for the AFSC has been at the top of the AFCA
| egi sl ati ve agenda since 1998. The AFCA is very encouraged by
this |egislation. In closing, he pointed out that the state
licenses all manner of public services, yet does not |icense
firefighters, although no other professional provides the types
of services provided by firefighters.

4:48: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS inquired as to what funding sources were
consi dered by the AFCA

MR. SCHRACE replied that the AFCA and the ASFA have funded the
counci | . He said that grants have been applied for, yet none
have been successful. The AFCA has also |ooked into other
states’ funding sources, which include funding from excise taxes
or voluntary funding from the insurance industry. He opi ned
that direct appropriation would be the sinplest, yet is not a
realistic option.

4:49: 36 PM

KATHY WASSERMAN, Al aska Municipal League (AML), stated that AWML
is in full support of HB 211, although not “totally wld” about
the funding source. She said “It’s too bad that the climate in
this state is such that we can't go [to the House Finance
Commttee and the Senate Finance Committee] and get funding for
this.” She read fromthe AFSC m ssion statement, as foll ows:

The mission of the Alaska Fire Standards Council is to
establish training and performance standards for fire
service personnel, and curriculum requirenents for the
certification of training prograns.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- April 2, 2007



M5. WASSERMAN stated that the AFCA is an affiliate nenber of the
AML, and the AML has offered the AFCA support over the years.
She thanked the sponsor for taking this path, which appears to
be the only path avail abl e.

4:51:19 PM

JEFFREY TROUTT, Deputy Director, D vision of Insurance (“the
Di vision”), Department of Commerce, Community, & Economc
Devel opnent (DCCED), stated that as a matter of policy, the
Division opposes any increase to the <cost of insurance.
However, everyone is in support of doing everything possible to
increase the professionalism and standards for firefighters.
The Division would prefer to see a different funding nechani sm
In response to a question from Representative Gardner, agreed
that it would be too difficult to collect a fee on all types of

i nsur ance. He explained that honmeowners insurance is well-
defined, adding that everyone who has a nortgage has sone type
of liability and fire protection. In the commercial context,

this mght not be the case, as several conpanies m ght share the
risk, creating a question with regard to which conpany woul d pay
the $3 fee. He said that every conpany that provides honeowners
insurance regularly submts premium taxes, and it is “fairly

sinple” to add the $3 fee to this. Addi tionally, business
owners are nost |ikely homeowners, as well, and woul d al ready be
paying the $3 fee. He said that it is also easier on an
adm nistrative level, requiring a few lines of additiona

conput er code.
4:52:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if it would be challenging to nake
the fee a percent of the policy value, rather than a set dollar
anmount .

MR. TROUTT replied that this would be nore difficult, because
i nsurance conpanies do not currently report the anopunt of each
policy to the Division. This information would need to be
collected before the D vision would be able to charge a
percent age fee.

4:55:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH asked what nethods have been used in other
st at es.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- April 2, 2007



MR. TROUTT replied that while other states have done this, he
does not have details regarding these prograns.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked if a statutory change would be
required to increase the fee in the future.

MR. TROUTT replied yes.
4:57:13 PM

ERIC MOHRMANN, Fire Chief, Capital Cty Firel/lRescue (CCFR
stated that he is in support of HB 211. He explained that he

requires that al | CCFR applicants have Firefighter 1
certification, and if the individual does not have this
training, he nust provide it. He stated that the training is

expensive, adding that he nust pay overtinme to cover shifts
while the individual is away receiving the training, as well as
paying him or her while in training. Two-thirds of CCFR
firefighters are volunteers who nust be able to work at the sane
| evel as the paid staff. He said that it is extrenely inportant
to know that when a firefighter is ordered to go into a
building, as part of a group, he or she wll be effective and
saf e. He stated that firefighter training has conme a |ong way
since he began his career, and the AFSC is needed to ensure that
firefighters are safe, effective, and able to operate as part of
a team He pointed out that investigators and instructors are
state certified, and noted that the Training and Education
Bureau can no |onger support this program The AFCA and the
ASFA has funded this program through raffle tickets and pull-

t abs. He shared a story involving a structure fire in Angoon
and said that firefighters nust be properly trained and
equi pped. He stated that rural areas do not have fires often

but when they do, if the firefighters are not properly trained
and equi pped, people wll die.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked how the instructor and investigator
certification is funded.

MR. MOHRMANN replied that all certification prograns are covered
by the Training and Education Bureau, adding that this is not
included in its budget, and is being paid for by receipts.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS t hanked M. Mhrmann for his service. He
encouraged nenbers to contact their local fire departnents “to
find out with what |low regard we treat our fire departnents,
until there’'s an accident in our hone, in our neighborhood

and then you expect everything.”

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -21- April 2, 2007



CHAIR OLSON indicated that HB 211 would be held for further
consi derati on.

5:02:48 PM
ADJ OURNNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
5:02 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -22- April 2, 2007



